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The directors present their reports and the audited financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2021. 
 

STRATEGIC REPORT 
 
 

Nottingham City Homes is a group of housing companies working together to deliver our 
vision of creating homes and places where people want to live.  The Group comprises 
Nottingham City Homes Ltd (NCH), Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Ltd 
(NCHRP) and Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Ltd (NCHEL). The NCH Group (‘The 
Group’) manages homes on behalf of the City Council, as well as its own homes, and homes 
owned by other landlords, and provides a range of services to support people in the 
communities we serve.  There are 27,513, homes under our management and/or to which 
services are provided to, including 1,366 leasehold properties. Around a fifth of Nottingham 
households live in the homes we are responsible for. The main NCH Company is a wholly 
owned local authority company limited by guarantee.  
 
As a not for profit company, the Group reinvests any surpluses we achieve for the benefit of 
local people. Through this reinvestment, the local staff we employ and the local businesses 
we support, Nottingham City Homes makes a major contribution to the Nottingham 
economy.  
 
As well as our core housing services, we help people into work through learning and skills 
programmes, support health and wellbeing programmes and play an important part in 
tackling crime and anti-social behaviour.  We work closely with a range of partner 
organisations in all these areas to deliver better outcomes for Nottingham people. We work 
in partnership with others to transform the prospects of people we serve.  
 
The year ending 31st March 2021 was the final year of our 2018 to 2021 Corporate Plan, 
with the NCH Group continuing to deliver the five goals set out in that plan:  
 

 listen to our residents and deliver an excellent housing service 
 make all our estates great places to live 
 build high quality, affordable new homes for local people 
 diversify our services, re-investing in our communities 
 be a great place to work. 

 
The Company’s core business over the year included: 
 

 Managing the city’s housing register  
 Re-letting empty homes  
 Rent collection and arrears recovery  
 Tenant and leaseholder involvement  
 Supported housing services, including Nottingham On Call 
 Helping to sustain tenancies and reduce homelessness  
 Tenancy and estate management  
 Caretaking services  
 Repairs and maintenance  
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 Managing the programme of investment in council housing including new build 
 In-house construction of New Build housing 
 Actively progressing our market rent ambitions through both the development of new 

build housing and the acquisition of properties. 
 
Having signed a new 30-year Partnership Agreement with NCC to continue managing 
council housing in the city, we were able to look ahead and draw up our new three year 
Corporate Plan during 2020, which commenced in April 2021. Our partnership with the 
Council is at the heart of our work, and their support rests on the  the outcomes we’ve 
delivered, looking after existing homes and building new ones as well as managing a 
whole host of services to create homes and places where people want to live.  
 
Under s172 of the Companies Act 2006, Nottingham City Homes has a duty to promote the 
success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, having regard to: 
 

• Maintaining a high standard of business conduct 
• Acting fairly between the members of the business 
• The interests of employees 
• Fostering business relationships with suppliers, customers and others 
• The impact of operations on the community and the environment  
• The likely consequence of any decision in the long term. 
 
The Board also needs to address the following: 
 

• The issues, factors and stakeholders the directors consider relevant in complying with 
the above and how we have formed that opinion 

• The methods the directors have used to engage with stakeholders and understand 
the issues to which they must have regard 

• The effect of that regard on the company’s decisions and strategies during the year.  
 
As a 100% owned subsidiary company of Nottingham City Council, our primary objective is 
to deliver our core services – managing, maintaining and delivering additional social rented 
homes. Working on behalf of the Council, delivering landlord functions to thousands of 
tenants and leaseholders and supporting the Council in the delivery of its housing and 
homelessness duties. 
 
We consider the needs and expectations of our interested parties. These include 
Nottingham City Council, tenants and leaseholders, housing applicants including the 
homeless, staff and trades unions, commercial partners, the Regulator of Social Housing, 
National Government, the local community and our suppliers.  Consulting with and working 
in collaboration with all these groups, enables NCH to deliver services that meets their 
expectations. To this end NCH has achieved the following Standards and is independently 
certified to them. 
 
Quality ISO9001 This framework supports our objective to deliver improved 

services, efficiently, and meeting the requirements of our 
customers. By having clear documented procedures, and a 
robust management system, covering recruitment, training and 
development, customer focus, the engagement of our staff, 
improvement initiatives and evidence based decision making. 
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Health & Safety OHSAS18001 To support our employees and customers by ensuring our 
working practices are safe and that our tenants can be assured 
that the homes in which they live are safe and secure. In 2021 we 
shall be transitioning to the new ISO45000 Standard for Health & 
Safety. 

Environmental ISO14001 We are committed to protecting the environment and by adopting 
this Standard we have demonstrated that we do what we say we 
will do. From the introduction of electric vehicles, to solar panels 
on our tenanted and commercial properties, to charging points at 
our Harvey Road site and ground breaking energy efficiency 
measures across many parts of our tenanted properties we are 
having a positive impact on our local environment whilst at the 
same time reducing energy bills for our customers and for NCH 
itself.  

 
 
Our interested parties and their primary needs are: 

Interested Party Focus Need 

Nottingham City Council External 
Maintained housing stock, New build, Regulatory 
Compliance and to support its environmental 
objectives to become a carbon neutral city by 2028. 

Tenants & Leaseholders External 

Quality Repairs completed right first time/Clean 
neighbourhoods/low levels of ASB.  Ensure effective 
involvement. And to provide energy efficient homes 
that help to reduce fuel poverty. 

Housing Applicants External 
Housing available to rent which is affordable and a 
safe place to live. 

Staff & Trades Unions Internal 
Continued employment, good terms and conditions, 
including excellent pension provision, and a safe 
working environment. 

Nottingham City Homes 
Board/Executive Management 
Team 

Internal 

The Board which decides on the strategic direction of 
the Company agrees the Strategies and key policies 
of the company. It agrees the strategic 3 year 
Corporate Plan which highlights the main 
programmes and KPI's relevant to the business, 
ensuring that the company meets the needs and 
expectations of all of its stakeholders. To transform 
the business, ensuring it complies with legislation, 
policies and procedure. 

Suppliers External 
Continued Business with NCH, based on 
performance, trust and partnership. 

The Social Housing Regulator External 

The Regulators focus is to ensure that NCH meets its 
regulatory and legal duties with a focus on delivering 
value for money, quality services and homes that are 
safe for tenants to live in. 

National Government External 

Continued tight control on budgets within the public 
sector. To support the objectives set out in 2020’s 
Social Housing White Paper around the provision of 
safe and good quality social housing, with quality 
service provision for residents.  

Commercial customers(inc.PA 
Housing, Zedra, H&G) 

External 
Properties advertised in a timely manner to enable 
early letting. Delivery of high quality management 
services. offering value for money 

Local Community External 
Clean Neighbourhoods/Low levels of ASB and 
provide local employment. Maintain high 
environmental standards 



Nottingham City Homes Limited 
(Company limited by guarantee) 
STRATEGIC AND DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 
For the year ended 31st March 2021 
 

 6 

We consider the interests of our employees who benefit from stable employment prospects 
and a defined benefit pension scheme which allows employees to plan for their future. We 
undertake staff surveys and operate forums for Health and Safety and Equalities to ensure 
that views are taken into account. We formally recognise staff Trades Unions and meet 
regularly with them. 
 
Our detailed approach to meeting our objectives is set out in our Service Plans which are 
reviewed annually.  The Chief Executive Officer and the Chair of the Board attend the 
Partnership Forum quarterly with the senior elected and staff representatives of the City 
Council to discuss various matters relating to our services including funding, policies and 
strategies across the whole housing service and where Nottingham City Homes can add 
value to the Council. Discussion of the long term ability to finance new homes, supporting 
tackling homelessness and sustain a good level of service and rents for Council tenants 
feature in these discussions.  
 
Funding levels, staffing resources, support from the Council, opportunities to deliver new 
Council homes and national policies with respect to Council and other affordable housing all 
influence our decisions.   
 
Emergency legislation was enacted in March 2020, the Coronavirus Act 2020, going on to 
have a significant impact across various areas of public policy and national life over the last 
year. This was supported by government guidance over a range of aspects of service 
provision pertinent to NCH’s work. This included matters relating to the continued provision 
of core and vital services, including safe access to carry out repairs, work to tackle 
homelessness and provide urgent accommodation for rough sleepers, support for those at 
risk of domestic violence, and various alterations to social security benefit entitlements.  This 
was alongside government intervention to support employees through such schemes as 
furlough, and support for the self-employed. The legislation also restricted powers of eviction 
from rented homes during the pandemic. As matters progressed during the year, the 
legislation was extended and associated arrangements renewed. 
 
In November 2020 the government published its long awaited Social Housing White Paper: 
‘The Charter for Social Housing Residents’. This built on 2018’s Social Housing Green Paper 
and the commitments made in the Conservative’s 2019 General Election Manifesto. There 
is no doubt that the White Paper will set the key themes for social housing over the 
foreseeable future.  
 
The White Paper focuses on the following areas:  
 Resident and building safety 
 Landlord performance, and the clear publication of performance information 
 Prompt and fair complaints processes 
 A strong consumer regulator, supporting tenants to be treated with respect 
 Residents voices being heard by their landlord 
 Good quality homes and neighbourhoods, including the prospect of a new Decent 

Homes Standard 
 Helping tenants take their first steps into home ownership. 
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Certain aspects of the proposals are subject to further consultation and continuing dialogue 
with the sector, such as a new Decent Homes Standard, and sector wide comparable 
performance indicators. Others, such as stronger consumer regulation, were already under 
preparation. The ongoing commitment to the Right to Buy is clear, along with proposals for 
extended arrangements relating to shared ownership, particularly with new housing 
developments supported by government finance.    
 
During the year, the government also progressed legislation on building safety and fire 
safety, as well as the Domestic Abuse Bill 2020, all of relevance to the NCH Group’s work. 
 

Emissions and Energy Consumption and Carbon Reporting 
 
NCH is committed to reducing the impact of our activities on the environment.  Over the last 
number of years, we have invested over £15m on deep energy retrofit projects to our homes, 
and are currently undertaking extensive energy efficiency interventions on 200 of our 
poorest performing properties. 
 
Transport accounts for approximately 75% of our carbon emissions and this transport is a 
key factor in our service delivery and has remained operating over the last year even with 
the impact of Covid.  Therefore, the reduction in CO2 emissions within the fleet is significant 
at 59 Tonnes less CO2 produced. 
 
NCH is embarking on a Fleet Replacement project and has 10 Electric Vehicles now in the 
fleet, which are all pool vehicles, with a further 2 on trial through NCC’s EVE (Electrical 
Vehicle Experience) project.  It is planned to replace the entire fleet in the summer of 2022 
and this will include the purchase a number of additional EV vehicles. Any new non-
electric vehicles in the new fleet will also reduce our carbon emissions due to vehicle 
performance improvements.  
  
NCH's strategy is to support Nottingham City Council in its commitment to become the first 
carbon neutral city in the country by 2028, where financial viable and meeting business 
need, maximising the number of its electric vehicles. 
 
To minimise the impact of staff travelling to and from our offices, we offer the cycle to work 
scheme, and even before COVID19 we offered flexible and home working.  As a result we 
have been able to rationalise our office requirements over the last couple of years.  Following 
the COVID19 working changes, we expect to see a greater reduction in office use. 
 
To reduce the impact of our office premises we have installed solar panels on the roof of our 
main office building, which have saved approximately 96,000 kWhs of electricity over the 
year.  We have also installed EV charging points for both our own fleet, and to encourage 
staff to use EVs to drive to and from work. 
 
Our main office has undergone partial improvement with new office space created to 
accommodate the transfer of staff from other offices.  The energy savings experienced 
reflect less office staff onsite, NCH will be reviewing the impact of additional staff at our main 
office in line with our property rationalisation and Covid impacts. 
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2020/21 saw an increase in Gas consumption at both our main offices, this was due to the 
impacts of Covid and the age of the system not taking into account office numbers and 
changes.  In 2021 we will vacate one of our main offices and will be replacing the antiquated 
Gas boilers with more efficient electrical systems.  This will significantly impact our carbon 
emissions for the better. 
 
We have focused on reporting our carbon emissions from the buildings we have control 
over.  A proportion of our staff are based in offices where we are not responsible for energy, 
such as joint service centres, or the City Council Head Office, Loxley House.  The energy 
consumption of these buildings is reported by others.  For this reason, we are reporting on 
progress against the previous year, rather than carbon emissions per property managed. 
 
Our total GHG generation for our offices in 2020/21 was 241 tonnes, which is a reduction of 
2 tonnes from 2019/20.  Fuel used by fleet vehicles has reduced meaning we emitted 59 
tonnes less CO2.  We expect this to fall in future years as some of the fleet is replaced with 
electric vehicles.  During the year, in the delivery of the service, NCH consumed an 
estimated 1,021 carbon tonnages and 1,227,207 KWH in gas, electricity and water. This is 
detailed in the table below: 
  

Type of resource Carbon 
tonnage 

 

KWH  Carbon 
tonnage 

 

KWH  

 2020/21 2019/20 
Diesel used in van fleet 762 - 811 - 
Petrol used in van fleet 18  27  
LPG used in van fleet 0    
Gas used in offices & common rooms 182 987,564 158 857,783 
Electricity used in offices & common rooms 55 235,574 81 316,096 
Water used in offices & common rooms 4 4,069 4 4,014 
 1,021 1,227,207 1,083 1,177,893 
Total properties – owned & managed 26,147 26,003 
Usage per 1,000 properties 39 46,935 41 45,304 

 

The information does not include fuel claimed for travel by team members when using      
their own vehicles.  
 
 
Housing regulation 
 

Regulation of social housing is carried out by The Regulator of Social Housing, based on a 
model of co-regulation, which sees the focus on governance, financial viability and value for 
money, with organisations held accountable for service delivery through effective tenant 
scrutiny arrangements.  

NCH is committed to embracing co regulation wholeheartedly. We have an ALMO Board, 
which includes a majority of tenant members, and is designed to give tenants a bigger say 
in how NCH operates. The role of the ALMO Board is to scrutinise the services we provide 
to all tenants and leaseholders and they play a vital role in supporting our service 
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improvement programme. Our Tenant and Leaseholder Involvement Strategy supports 
engagement at all levels, with residents taking on roles from Street and Block Champions 
to Tenant Board Members. Residents are also actively involved in scrutinising our services 
through our Customer Excellence Panel and our ACE Inspector programme. In support of 
its work the Customer Excellence Panel has been provided with resources to enable the 
panel to undertake their work effectively, leading to challenge of the organisation and 
improvement of services. The regulatory approach is changing as a result of the Social 
Housing White Paper in which the Regulator will have a greater role in scrutinising larger 
landlords. Regular inspections will be introduced every 4 years and the serious detriment 
test will be dropped. 

The Regulator will review the Consumer Standards to ensure they are fit for purpose and 
will be working more closely with the Housing Ombudsman and the Building Safety 
Regulator to ensure that Landlords are meeting their obligations. 

The Building Safety Bill will place further regulation on the housing sector going forward and 
NCH will need to ensure that it meets any additional requirements placed upon it. 

The Regulator of Social Housing treats NCHRP slightly differently, by virtue of its status as 
a Registered Provider with fewer than 1,000 properties. The Regulator reviews the NCHRP 
based on both the economic and consumer standards.  
Investing in the housing stock 
 

The total housing stock managed by the Group as at 31st March 2021 is 27,513 homes as 
detailed here.  
 
 
Managed on behalf of Nottingham City Council 25,393 
Managed on behalf of other social landlords 155 
Leasehold properties (NCC Freeholder) 1,366 
NCH owned (social rent) 120 
NCH owned (housing homeless families) 161 
NCH owned (major refurbishment or reconfiguration) 37 
NCH RP owned 39 
NCH RP leased (private) 84 
NCH EL owned 158 
 27,513 

 
Our Asset Management Strategy will invest resources in both council owned and Group 
owned stock continues to seek to reduce the level and cost of future responsive repairs, 
provide greater value for money, and minimise future investment needs. 
We have continued to maintain 100% Decency with the housing stock and we are committed 
to continued investment in our stock to maintain 100% decency. We have achieved 100% 
in relation to valid Gas Safety Certificates. 
 
We are committed to reducing fuel poverty and reducing carbon emissions, through 
improved energy efficiency measures such as insulation and innovative building retrofit 
schemes. We have continued to achieve certification to the ISO14001:2015 Standard. 
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We have continued with the modernisation of Independent Living Schemes through our 
‘Grander Designs’ programme, and we will continue to invest in this initiative, completing 
work at the remaining three schemes by Autumn 2021. 
 
We are continuing to acquire more market rent properties through our market rented arm, 
ensuring that there is more choice for the people of Nottingham to rent within the city. 
 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Performance continues to be a priority for the Group and we have continued to improve 
performance in a number of areas, notably around customer satisfaction. However, there 
have also been some challenges, particularly in relation to income collection and voids which 
has been impacted by the coronavirus pandemic in 2020. These areas have been impacted 
across the sector. 
 
NCH is reviewing its performance management framework in 2021 with the intention of 
further enhancing our approach with the aim of NCH continuing to perform well for its 
customers and relatively to its peers.  
 
The Boards receive quarterly reports of key performance indicators against targets and 
performance. The ALMO Board received a report from Housemark, the nationally 
recognised benchmarking provider for social housing, which provided analysis of its costs 
and performance in relation to other housing organisations. 
 

More detailed performance statistics are also monitored at directorate and service area level 
to ensure that targets are being met and where problem areas are identified that remedial 
action is taken at the earliest opportunity.  
 
Summarised below are the key performance indicators which focus on the key areas of the 
Group’s business, impact on financial performance and by which the development and 
position of the business is measured: 
 
 
Performance Indicators 
 
Satisfaction with the service 
 

Satisfaction with the repairs & maintenance service 
 

Satisfaction with neighbourhood as a place to live 
 

Repairs completed right first time 

2020/21 
 

89.7% 
 

83.7% 
 

86.8% 
 

95.9% 

2019/20 
 
88.6% 
 

81.1% 
 

86.3% 
 

95.65% 
   

Number of lettable voids 279 179  
   

Percentage of rent collected (rent due up to 31st March) 100.39% 100.2% 
   

Gas & Solid Fuel annual servicing completed 100% 100% 
   

Average re-let time in days 
 

37.8 
 

32.5 
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%. of properties with an EPC rating of E or below  
 

2.04% 
 

1.94% 
 

   
 

NCH has maintained high levels of customer satisfaction, with all main customer satisfaction 
measures being in the top 2 quartiles when compared with all housing organisations, using 
HouseMark data.  
 
SUCCESSES 
 

In 2020/21 our successes included: 
 

 drawing up a Recovery and Reinvention Plan as a key part of the response to the 
coronavirus pandemic. 

 continuing to deliver emergency repairs throughout the coronavirus pandemic, and 
puts systems in place to check in on its most vulnerable tenants. 

 Housing First, delivered by NCH in partnership with NCC, Framework and 
Opportunity Nottingham, is established, and goes on to turn around the fortunes of 
35 former rough sleepers in its first year of operation. 

 Residents move into new homes in Top Valley. 
 The Hospital to Home initiative delivers record savings for all partners involved – 

NCC, the NHS, and NCH – and is held up as a national exemplar by the Chartered 
Institute of Housing. 

 NCH being named a Top 100 Apprenticeship employer, the only organisation in 
Nottingham to make the list. 

 Tenants move into new homes on Tunstall Drive that have been built by the NCH 
in-house team. 

 Innovative inspection techniques using drone technology are trialled in Nottingham 
by NCH, and are showcased at a national conference. 

 Work starts on the Eastglade site, where 106 new homes will be built for 
Nottingham people. 

 The project to install new lifts in all 13 high-rises managed by NCH is completed. 
 The NCH Corporate Plan 2021-24 is launched, to commence in April 2021, and 

includes the new NCH Tenants’ Charter, a set of commitments arising from the 
requirements of the Social Housing White Paper. 

How we have engaged with our tenants and residents 
 

Nottingham City Homes welcomes and actively promotes customer feedback. 

 Feedback is collected in both quantitative and qualitative forms and in a variety of ways 
such as: 

 Tenant led Operational Board – ALMO Board 
 Tenant membership on Group Board 
 Quarterly STAR Surveys 
 Transactional Customer Surveys 
 Bespoke Consultations  
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 Complaints, Comments and Compliments 
 Focus groups 
 Support Plans 
 Customer Excellence Panel - Scrutiny 
 Tenant ACE Inspectors – 5 Star estates evaluations 
 Tenant representatives in procurement exercises 
 Opportunities for residents to get involved by volunteering as Street and Block 

Champions 
 
We encourage further feedback from our customers by frequently demonstrating that we 
have listened and acted on their feedback through various media channels. We advertise 
and promote all feedback mechanisms though publication of our regular newsletter, the 
website and social media channels. We regularly publish articles in our newsletter inviting 
residents to come and discuss services and performance as well as listen and respond to 
feedback through social media platforms in a timely and informative manner. 
 
 
 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS 
 
Our new three year Corporate Plan commences in April 2021 and sets out clear objectives 
for Nottingham City Homes,   
 
This plan commits to improving the core housing services we provide, helping keeping a 
roof over people’s heads, keeping people safe in their homes and supporting the community 
spirit so evident across the city. The Plan can be read in full at:  
www.nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk/about-us/corporate-documents/our-corporate-plan/ 
The plan sets out our goals over the next three years, which are: 
 
 • To deliver the NCH Tenants’ Charter: 

 • to be safe in your home 
 • to have a good quality home and neighbourhood to live in 
 • to have a home you can afford 
 • to have your voice heard and to be treated with respect 
 • to know how we are performing 
 • to have your complaints dealt with promptly and fairly 
 

 • To diversify and grow the NCH Group 
 
 • To pursue organisational excellence. 
 
This focus on safety, quality, performance scrutiny, listening to residents and ensuring 
access to clear and easy to access complaints processes is designed to ensure that we 
meet and embrace the requirements of 2020’s Social Housing White Paper.  
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The plan further outlines steps we will take to diversify and grow the NCH group by 
undertaking managed growth and diversification across our services, building on areas of 
strength and expertise to provide services for the people of Nottingham and generate an 
income for the benefit of the city. This will involve delivering additional affordable housing in 
Nottingham where we can, growing our in-house delivery teams, managing homes for other 
landlords, improving services to leaseholders, providing specialist supported housing and 
developing our assistive technology offer, helping people live in their homes for longer. We 
will further develop our partnership working with Nottingham City Council, and continue to 
work to help the council meet its aims and objectives across a range of areas, such as 
helping to support the city’s carbon neutral ambitions through our investment in reducing 
energy use, both as a business, and for those who live in the homes we manage.   
 
We aim for organisational excellence in our governance, culture and to be an employer of 
Choice that is a great place to work. We will review the effectiveness of governance, risk, 
compliance, performance management and administrative policies and processes as part 
of the objectives set out in our Corporate Plan. 
 
We will continue to be an efficient organisation, with a robust set of financial procedures and 
internal controls in place to make sure that resources are carefully managed and 
demonstrate value for money. 
 
There will be no doubt that the impact of the coronavirus pandemic will be at the forefront of 
the challenges faced as we look to the future, both for NCH and other organisations we work 
in close partnership with, as well as for the residents we serve. We will use our Recovery 
and Re-invention Plan to address these challenges as our orderly route out of the pandemic. 
We will react appropriately to the wider economic impacts of the pandemic, especially as 
these become apparent over the longer term.    
 
COVID-19 
 
Across the financial year the most dramatic events surrounded the spread of the global 
Covid-19 pandemic. Around early March 2020 the Government made a series of rapid policy 
announcements and enacted emergency measures covering a wide range of areas not least 
in health, housing and social security policy. Along with all similar organisations NCH group 
rapidly focussed its activities in relation to this, working within the constraints of the wider 
‘lock down’ to deliver core and vital services. 
The short, medium and long term impact of the pandemic on wider economic issues are 
certain to be significant, and have direct and indirect impact on NCH Group activity, as well 
as on its employees, customers and on partner organisations. 
 
NCH established its Covid-19 Recovery and Reinvention Plan intended to smooth the 
transition to a return to ‘normal’ business. The financial impact of Covid 19 has been on the 
significant, restricting NCH’s operations and access to tenants, their homes and our own 
offices. The potential impact was reported to Audit, Risk and Compliance (ARC) Committee 
during the financial year along with NCH’s claims for grant through the Government’s Job 
Retention Scheme.  The impact on budgets was significant but prompt actions and 
commitment of resources to those areas impacting on services and tenants has managed 
this. Significant process was made in reducing the backlog of repairs that arose due to 
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lockdown restrictions with a target to have all non-urgent repairs completed by the end of 
September. We are now also close to getting back to delivering all services to tenants that 
have been impacted and restricted.  
 
Although there exists a real threat of the risk of a second spike, further restrictions and a 
second lockdown, the financial impact of Covid 19 has largely been, and is anticipated to 
continue to be, managed within budgets and Furlough grant received (£426k). 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  

The Company’s Corporate Risk Register sets out the risks deemed to most adversely impact 
on its ability to achieve its Corporate objectives. The register is being reviewed this year.  
The principal risks and those which reflect uncertainties facing the business are highlighted 
below: 

We aim to identify, control and manage all risks within a culture of risk management.  The 
key corporate risks to the group are listed below. Each risk is assessed for likelihood and 
severity of impact.  Mitigating actions are agreed to reduce or eliminate these factors, and 
progress is monitored by both management and the Board.  
 

1. Governance: Weaknesses in the leadership provided by Board and senior management, 
or in our governance arrangements or planning processes lead to financial mismanagement, 
poor performance, lack of confidence or breach of statutory requirements. 
2. Financial: Financial mismanagement, or variations in assumptions made for business 
planning purposes create a shortfall in funding levels and potential failure to operate as a 
going concern. 
3. Health and safety: A failure to identify and manage health and safety risks or comply with 
statutory requirements results in fatality, injury, ill-health or legal action. 
4. Fire safety: A failure to identify and manage fire risk results in multiple fatalities, injury, ill-
health, loss of or damage to assets or buildings, or legal action. 
5. Emergency planning: A failure to plan for emergencies and have disaster recovery plans 
in place results in threats to residents' welfare (including loss of accommodation or 
belongings) or an inability to deliver continuous services. 
6. Stakeholder engagement: Poor performance or lack of effective engagement with key 
stakeholders results in declining relationships/ loss of confidence in our ability to meet our 
objectives. 
7. Employee engagement: Poor employee relations and high absence levels lead to loss of 
employee confidence & morale, increased costs & an inability to retain or recruit competent 
people. 
8. Delivery: Failure to plan, manage or monitor major projects or day to day operations 
results in financial mismanagement, poor quality outcomes or loss of confidence in our ability 
to deliver. 
9. Information Communication Technology [ICT]: Loss of data, failure of networks or 
operating systems, insufficient data security or a failure to invest in technological 
improvements prevents efficient delivery of services or results in loss of confidence and legal 
action. 
10. Business development: NCH fails to diversify, compete effectively in open markets or 
manage the risks associated with new business activities, resulting in a reducing core 
business, poor investments and loss of confidence in the organisation. 
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11. Changes in policy: Adverse changes to government or NCC housing policy or legislation 
reduces capability to meet Corporate Plan objectives, creates additional burdens, an inability 
to plan effectively for the future, or loss of income or assets. 
The Covid-19 pandemic presents a number of unprecedented risks to NCH group. The 
Group will assess these risks and put in place processes to mitigate them as far as is 
possible to achieve.  
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW  
 

The Group and Company complies with the accounting requirements for defined benefit 
pension schemes under FRS102 which significantly affects the disclosed performance. The 
Consolidated Income Statement includes these accounting entries and shows a reported 
deficit of £4.077 million for the 2020/21 financial year compared with a deficit of £6.070 
million in the prior year. 
 
The actuarial valuation has allowed for the estimated impact of the recent McCloud/Sargeant 
judgement as a past service cost. There was no capitalised cost of additional benefits 
awarded during the year (calculated at £2.149million in 2019/20).  In 2019/20 this was an 
estimate of the potential impact on NCH’s defined benefit obligation based on analysis 
carried out by the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) and NCH’s liability profile. The 
key assumption is the assumed rate of future salary increases and it is not yet clear how this 
judgement may affect LGPS members’ past or future service benefits. 
 
The pension liability on the Group and Company’s Balance Sheet has increased from 
£87.188 million at the end of 2019/20 to £139.354 million in the 2020/21 financial year. The 
Company has to make annual cash contributions to the pension fund at a rate agreed with 
the fund’s trustees. Budgets and forecasts, including the actual payments to the pension 
scheme, have been prepared that show that the Company will be able to meet its liabilities 
as they fall due, notwithstanding that an accounting loss may be reported.  
 
The fixed asset value has increased across the year as the Group continues to purchase 
land and buildings in line with the proposals in its Corporate Plan. The increase in loans, 
bank overdraft and creditors show how the addition investment is currently supported. The 
level of debtors has remained relatively consistent across the year, with a rise at the year-
end due to the timing of NCC receipts. 

With fees and other income remaining relatively static, turnover has been largely due to 
rental income growing across the year as the number of Homes owned by the Company has 
steadily increased. Landlord activity across the Group contributes to the annual surplus 
through the net income and expenditure position delivered and the absorption of costs within 
the Group. 

GOING CONCERN 

At its meeting on 24th June 2021, the Board of Nottingham City Homes Limited approved 
that, in their opinion, the Nottingham City Homes Limited Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, defined as a period not less 
than 12 months following the signing of the financial statements. The Board’s assessment 
is that this continues to be the case at the date the final 2020/21 statements were signed. 
Accordingly it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing financial statements. 
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This is based on the new 30 year Partnership Agreement which is in place with Nottingham 
City Council to pay management and repairs fees in return for delivery of housing 
management and maintenance services as set out in the current Partnership Agreement.  
 
In addition, the Council recognises that, following the processing of accounting transactions 
for defined benefit pension schemes under FRS102, the Company does not have sufficient 
reserves to offset the resultant deficit. It therefore undertakes to provide continuing support 
to enable the financial statements of NCH to be prepared on a going concern basis. 
Nottingham City Council confirms annually that it will continue to assist NCH in meeting their 
pension fund liabilities as and when they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise 
available to NCH to meet such liabilities. 
 

NCH has a £50milion loan facility and NCHEL a facility of £24million, with the City Council 
so that loans required to support the cost of NCH owned new build schemes under 
construction in 2021/22 and future years, shall be made available to ensure NCH can 
continue as a going concern and has adequate cashflow. 
 
TAXATION  
 

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of NCC and the majority of NCH’s income is 
derived from services provided to NCC as an agent and other associated local government 
organisations. Under the non-trading arrangements, all income and expenditure arising from 
trading with NCC is outside the scope of Corporation Tax.  Non-government organisations 
related income amounted to £7,230k (2019/20: £5,026k) and represented, in the main, 
income from NCH’s rented properties and Nottingham City tenants and residents for 
landlord, rechargeable works and other services. Where such income arises, it is offset in 
the main by respective eligible expenditure. There is however a tax charge and liability 
included in the 2020/21 Group accounts which has arisen within the subsidiary NCHRP 
Limited.  
 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 

The Group owns fleet vehicles, land (purchased from Nottingham City Council for 
Development) and 478 dwellings Homes are let to social housing and market rent tenants 
as well as to Homeless families on behalf of the City Council.  
 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

The Group’s business is entirely based in the UK and all activities are conducted with UK 
based counterparties in sterling.  The Group does not use or trade in any derivative financial 
instruments.  Surplus cash balances are held with NCC as bank deposits.  Credit risk is 
managed by NCC Treasury in line with its approved policies.     
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 

The Group shall require further loans from the City Council in 2021. The financing of loans 
is supported by the rental income stream from landlord activity and secured against the 
value of the assets. Post balance sheet events that could have a material effect on the Group 
which have arisen before the date these Financial Statements are approved by Board and 
disclosed in the notes.  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
CONSTITUTION  
 

The Company is incorporated as a private company limited by guarantee under the 
Companies Act 2006. As such it has no share capital.  The Company’s sole member is 
Nottingham City Council (‘NCC’).  
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES  
 

The principal activities of the Company are to act as the managing agent of NCC’s housing 
stock and some commercial properties, and to provide a repairs and maintenance service 
to the landlord in respect of these properties. The Company also manages and maintains 
its own housing stock for both social housing and market rented housing. In addition to those 
of the Company, the Group’s activities include the provision of housing for homeless 
families.   
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Our Risk Management Framework sets out the Group’s approach to risk management and 
how the organisation’s key risks are identified, monitored and reported through the Risk 
Management Group, Executive Management Team and ARC Committee. It is held under 
review by the NCH Full Board.  A full review of the risk management process is being 
undertaken this year.  This will include new risk management framework and processes 
being introduced for the Group Board, NCH RP and NCHEL. 
 

The Corporate Risk Register outlines the existing counter measures in place to mitigate 
each corporate risk as well as the additional controls identified and developed to manage 
risk to an acceptable level. Separate Risk Registers are also in place for NCHRP and 
NCHEL. 
 
NCH is certified to BS OHSAS 18001: 2007, the national standard for occupational health 
and safety management systems, and is independently audited by an external certification 
body annually in order to ensure compliance with the standard. The current certificate runs 
to September 2021.  Maintenance of this certification provides independent assurance that 
health and safety is effectively managed throughout the Group and can be advantageous 
when seeking new business, especially within the construction sector. In addition to the 
certification against BS OHSAS 18001:2007, NCH also hold external Safe Contractor 
certification which is part of the National Safety Schemes in Procurement aimed at the 
construction and supply chain sectors. 
 
The NCH occupational health and safety management system is currently being reviewed 
and updated in readiness for the transition from BS OHSAS 18001:2007 to the International 
Standard ISO 45001:2018. The target date for transition is now September 2021 where the 
BS OHSAS standard will be withdrawn.    
 
NCH holds monthly building and corporate health and safety meetings, which is attended 
by Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service and helps promote NCH as a proactive local 
partner for NFRS. 
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EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION 
 

The Group has a high level of commitment to equality of opportunity. NCH is committed to 
promoting equality and embracing and celebrating the diversity of our customers and 
employees.  NCH will ensure that no resident, service user, employee or job applicant is 
discriminated against unfairly or receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of a 
protected characteristic defined by the Equality Act 2010.  
 
Nottingham City Homes is fully compliant with the Public Sector Equality Duty and uses the 
Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) as a tool of self-appraisal, and action 
planning. 
 
We recognise that an organisation that reflects and values the diversity of its community will 
be a better employer and deliver better services. We provide inclusive, accessible services, 
increasingly tailored to individual need. We are committed to continually improving our 
approach to equality and diversity issues in partnership with our tenants, employees and 
Board.  Our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Strategy ensures that we take an inclusive and 
empathetic approach to managing people and delivering services. 
 
We have established a strategic Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering group to ensure 
effective and coordinated action, to reduce inequality and promote equality and inclusion.  
We host and support a range of staff led equality forums which play a key role in helping us 
to shape our policies and strategies. Each forum is supported directly by an executive 
management sponsor and our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Manager. Our forums include, 
Ethnically Diverse Forum, Disabled Employees and Carers Forum and Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual, Transgender + forum (LGBT+). 
 
A combination of equality frameworks are used to enhance equality and inclusion for our 
employees and customers:  
 

 Stonewall Workplace Equality Index  
 Race at Work Charter  
 Disability Confident Employer level 2 

 
Nottingham City Homes continues to report on the Gender Pay Gap each year and is now 
in the planning stages to also produce an Ethnicity Pay Gap Report and a Disability Pay 
Gap Report.  
 
All NCH posts are evaluated the same way using the same job evaluation scheme. We also 
provide a number of opportunities and initiatives to encourage internal development and 
external recruitment for underrepresented and minority groups. This includes and is not 
limited to our dedicated Women in Construction scheme and various other employability 
schemes, award winning apprenticeship scheme and our in house Aspire to Manage 
programme. In addition, we support Positive Action initiatives such as coaching, mentoring 
and the Future Leaders of Nottingham programme  
 
The Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) mandatory training for all employees has recently 
been refreshed and we are now in the process of designing additional EDI training for 
managers.  
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Nottingham City Homes recognise the responsibility that we share with our suppliers, to buy 
materials and deliver our services in a transparent and ethical manner. As part of this 
commitment we continue to produce our Modern Day Slavery Statement each year in line 
with the Ethical Trading Initiative (ETI) framework and Modern Slavery Act 2015. 
 
EMPLOYEES 
 

The Board pursues policies to encourage employees to play an active part in the 
development of the Company and use their knowledge and skills actively towards its 
success. At the same time people are kept aware of the financial and economic 
circumstances that impact on both their employment and the Company's performance.   
 
The Company is committed to informing, involving and engaging its employees and 
consulting them in relation to key issues.  We have a number of forums at which staff can 
raise issues that are of concern and have a number of means to keep staff informed of the 
business.  As well as the EDI Forums referenced previously, we hold regular  Trades Unions 
consultation meetings at companywide and departmental levels, local engagement 
arrangements, Team Brief circulars, staff social media platforms and the NCH intranet which 
is a very successful communication medium for news and events within the Company and 
across the Group. 
  
NCH’s company-wide employee group ‘Your Forum’ is run for all employees by a diverse 
group of individuals from all levels and areas across the business.  The forum members act 
as a consultation group but also champion change initiatives, helping to support and deliver 
the implementation of creative and innovative solutions adopted in response to 
organisational assessments, feedback and surveys.  
 
We have a good relationship with our recognised trade unions, GMB, UNISON, and UNITE 
and will continue to promote effective engagement between unions and management.   
We are currently using the “Best Companies” framework to enhance our employment 
practices and make NCH a great place to work. 
 
Our cross Company Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering group will ensure this remains 
a key priority for us. Nottingham City Homes believes in the value of a diverse workforce 
and this includes the representation of staff with disabilities. It, therefore, creates an 
accessible physical environment and an inclusive culture. More specifically, it aims to ensure 
that: 
 

 We work in partnership with the Access to Work Scheme and Occupational Health to 
ensure that employees with disabilities have full access to available support which is 
tailored to individual needs.  

 We regularly review our practices/procedures and ensure that we network with 
external groups such as the Nottingham Digital Inclusion Group and Nottingham 
Disability Inclusion Group in order to share best practice and implement suggested 
improvements.  

 We support a range of mental health and wellbeing initiatives such as the employee 
assistance programme (PAM Assist) and our in house Peer to Peer Support offer for 
employees who are experiencing challenges with their mental health.  
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 We have now included a dedicated section to mental health on our in house Learning 
Zone and staff Intranet where employees can access a wide range of free support 
materials and resources.  

 Applications for employment are assessed on the basis of objective & relevant criteria 
that do not discriminate against disabled people. We are a “Disability Confident 
Employer” and we promote this during the recruitment process to encourage 
applications from people with a disability. 

 Reasonable adjustments are offered to candidates with disabilities, where 
appropriate, during the selection process. 

 The views of staff with disabilities are taken into account and their concerns for 
confidentiality are respected. 

 We continue to review our on-line recruitment processes with a view to providing 
more employment opportunities in-house. 

 Reasonable adjustments are offered to staff with disabilities to enable them to 
undertake their work effectively. 

 People who become disabled during their time at the Nottingham City Homes are 
enabled to continue in employment where this is practicable and in line with their 
wishes. 

 
We continue to review our sickness absence processes and continue to add to our 
comprehensive health and well-being programme in order to continue to reduce our 
sickness absence rates.  
 
Finally, we ensure that Equality Impact Assessments are carried out on new or updated 
policy, procedures and services.  
 
GOVERNANCE 
 

A full review of the Company’s governance arrangements is currently being undertaken in 
response to  
 

 The publication of the White Paper on Social Housing,  
 The NCC Recovery Plan which has arisen out of the collapse of Robin Hood Energy 
 The new NHF Code of Governance published in December 2020 and 
 A recent review of risk management processes. 
 

The Company has previously adopted the National Housing Federation's Excellence in 
Governance Code launched in 2010 to encourage the highest standards of governance, 
accountability and probity while responding to change and increased risk. The Governance 
and Selection Committee assessed its compliance against the Code of Governance during 
2020, and was satisfied that overall it meets the standards of the Code.  NCH complies with 
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 and the Data Protection 
Act 2018. 
 
DIRECTORS  
 

Under the Articles of Association the directors, all of whom are non-executive, represent the 
local community: 
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 2 NCC nominees  
 2 city council tenants and leaseholders 
 4 independent members  
 

The non-executive directors who served during the year are shown on page 1. The non-
executive directors have no interests in the shares of the Company, receive no remuneration 
for their services to the Group and no contribution is paid towards their retirement 
arrangements. Under the Articles of Association, there are also 2 co-opted Board Members, 
who are entitled to attend and speak if permitted to do so by the Chair, but are not entitled 
to vote or count as part of the quorum. 
 
THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISION FOR DIRECTORS  
 

Insurance cover has been established for all directors to provide cover against their 
reasonable actions as officers of the Company. The cost in 2020/21 was £4,480 (2019/20 - 
£4,480). 
 
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE STRATEGIC 
REPORT, THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and 
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.  Company law 
requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law 
they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting 
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).   

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the 
company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the directors are required to:   

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and   
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the group and the company will continue in business.  
 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the group and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.  They have general 
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets 
of the group and the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.   

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company’s website.  Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
 

 



Nottingham City Homes Limited 
(Company limited by guarantee) 
STRATEGIC AND DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 
For the year ended 31st March 2021 
 

 22 

CHARITABLE DONATIONS 
 

The Company made charitable donations in the year of £50 to Young Minds (2019/20: £583 
to Nottingham Blood Banks). In 2019/20 we incentivised completion of our Best Companies 
Survey by offering £1 donation to the staff charity of the year for every staff survey 
completed. 
 
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE TO THE AUDITORS 
 

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 
Company’s auditors are not aware. Additionally the directors have taken all the necessary 
steps they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant 
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.  
 
AUDITORS 
 

The Company's articles require annual reappointment of the auditors.  Bishop Fleming were 
appointed in 2021. In accordance with s485(4) of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution to 
appoint the Company’s auditors will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be held 
on 30th September 2021. 
 
The Strategic and Directors’ reports approved by order of the board. 
 

 
Joanne Clifford  
Director of Corporate Services 
 
24th June 2021 
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OPINION 
We have audited the financial statements of Nottingham City Homes (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries 
(the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes 
in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company 
Statements of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 

In our opinion the financial statements: 
 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 
2021 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent 
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group or parent company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 
 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 
other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The directors are responsible for the 
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material 
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

 the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

 the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors' 
Report. 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
 certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or 
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud is detailed below: 

 

 We have considered the nature of the sector, control environment, business performance and key 
drivers for directors’ remuneration and performance targets; 

 We have considered the results of enquiries with management in relation to their own identification 
and assessment of the risk of irregularities within the entity;  

 We have reviewed the group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to: 
 
o Identifying, evaluation and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware 

of any instances of non-compliance; 
o Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, 

suspected or alleged fraud; 
o The internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or noncompliance with laws and 

regulations; 
 We have considered the matters discussed among the audit engagement team regarding how and 

where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud. 
 

As group auditors, our assessment of matters relating to non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud 
encompassed all entities within the group. 
As a result of these procedures, we have considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the 
organisation for fraud and identified the highest area of risk to be in relation to revenue recognition, with a 
particular risk in relation to year-end cut off and significant estimates such as the pension assumptions used 
in valuing the year end pension deficit and the valuation gain of the investment properties transferred in year. 
In common with all audits under ISAs (UK) we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to 
the risk of management override. 
 

We have also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, 
focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material 
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amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this 
context included the UK Companies Act, FRS 102 and UK tax legislation. In addition, we considered the 
provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but 
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or avoid a material penalty, 
including landlord health and safety laws and regulations covering fire risks, gas safety, water hygiene, 
electrical safety and asbestos. 
 

Our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following: 
 

 Reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess 
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the 
financial statements; 

 Performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate 
risks of material misstatement due to fraud; 

 Reviewing board meeting minutes; 
 Enquiring of management in relation to actual and potential claims or litigations or areas of non-

compliance with laws and regulations; 
 Performing detailed testing in relation to the recognition of revenue, with a particular focus around 

year-end cut off, including the agreement of year end balances with Nottingham City Council; 
 Performing a benchmarking summary of the assumptions used by the actuary and comparing to local 

government pension schemes across various counties and across different actuaries; 
 Reviewed the latest valuation report and the uplift in the property valuation, ensuring the gains have 

been recognised appropriately; 
 In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness 

of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgments made in accounting 
estimates are indicative of potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of significant 
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business. 

 

We also communicated identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all members of the 
engagement team and remained alert to possible indicators of fraud or non-compliance with laws and 
regulations throughout the audit. 
 

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, 
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not 
detecting one resulting from an error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, 
misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and 
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in 
the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. 
 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
Auditors' Report. 
 
USE OF OUR REPORT 
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of 
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company 
and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 
Nathan Coughlin FCA (Senior statutory auditor) for and on behalf of 
Bishop Fleming LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditors 
Salt Quay House 
4 North East Quay, Sutton Harbour 
Plymouth 
PL4 0BN 
Date: 30th June 2021
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Notes 

 

Year to 
31 March 

2021

£’000

   
Year to 31 

March 
2020 

 
£’000 

TURNOVER 2 68,287 67,029 
        

Operating expenses 3 (71,173) (71,657) 

Other operating income  2,129 1,788 
        

OPERATING LOSS  (757) (2,840) 

Interest payable  5 (3,306)
                       

(3,213) 

Interest receivable 5 0 0 
        

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 
TAXATION  (4,063) (6,053) 

Taxation 
7 (14)

                          
(17) 

        

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER 
TAXATION AND LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR  (4,077) (6,070) 
        

 
 
The accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis and relate to continuing activities. 
 
The accounting policies and notes on pages 32 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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 Notes 

Year to 31 
March 2021 

 
£’000 

Year to 31 
March 2020 

 
£’000 

LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  (4,077)    (6,070)    
        

PENSION SCHEME GAINS AND (LOSSES)                                                       

Return on Fund assets in excess of / (below) interest 22 32,560    (21,325)    

Actuarial (losses) / gains   22 (78,386)         34,195          
        

     (45,826)     12,870 
        

 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR  (49,903)   6,800    
        

 
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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  Notes 

Group 
Profit & 

loss 
account 

£’000 

 
Company

Profit & 
loss 

account 
£’000 

BALANCE AT 1st APRIL 2019   (78,699) (78,635) 

Loss for the year   (6,070) (6,130) 

Other comprehensive income     

- Loss on fund assets below interest    (21,325) (21,325) 

- Actuarial gains   34,195 34,195 
         

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 2020  24 (71,899) (71,895) 

Loss for the year   (4,077) (4,166) 

Other comprehensive income     

- Loss on fund assets in excess of interest   32,560 32,560 

- Actuarial losses   (78,386) (78,386) 
         

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 2021  24  (121,802)  (121,887) 
         

 
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts. 
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 Notes 

Group
2021
£’000

Group 
2020 
£’000 

Company
2021

   £’000

Company 
2020 
£’000 

FIXED ASSETS     
Intangible Assets 8 - - - - 
Tangible Assets 9 37,274 35,264 32,454 31,398 
Investment Properties  10 25,104 20,079 3,116 13,955 
   
CURRENT ASSETS     
Stocks and work in progress 12 1,053 1,038 1,053 1,038 
Debtors due within one year 13 1,192 2,225 3,414 9,315 
Current Asset Investment 14 - - - - 
Cash at bank and in hand 16 15,674 5 15.273 5 
             

  17,919 3,268 19,740 10,358 
CREDITORS:  
amounts falling due within one year 17   (10,615) (16,391) (10,449) (17,292)
             

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES      7,304  (13,123)      9,291    (6,934)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS      
CURRENT LIABILITIES  69,682 42,220 44,861 38,419 
     

Creditors: Amounts falling due after 
more than one year 18 (50,045) (26,763) (27,066) (22,958)
Provisions for liabilities 21 (328) (168) (328) (168)
             

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING  
PENSION ASSET LIABILITY  19,309 15,289 17,467 15,293 
      

Defined benefit pension scheme 
liability 22 (139,354) (87,188)

             
(139,354)

             
(87,188)

NET LIABILITIES INCLUDING 
PENSION LIABILITY  (120,045) (71,899) (121,887) (71,895)
             

CAPITAL AND RESERVES     
Revaluation reserve 24 1,757 - - - 
Profit and loss account 24 (121,802) (71,899) (121,887) (71,895)
             

TOTAL EQUITY  (120,045) (71,899) (121,887) (71,895)
             
 

The Company’s loss for the year and total comprehensive income for the year were 
£4.166 million (2019/20: £6.130m) & £(49.992) million (2019/20: £6.740m), respectively.  
 

As disclosed in note 23, members derive no financial interest from their shareholding and 
accordingly all capital and reserves are classed as non-equity.  The financial statements 
on pages 26 to 50 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 24th June 
2021 and signed on its behalf by: 

        
Malcom Sharp (Board Chair)   
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 Notes 

2021 
 

£’000 

2020 
 

£’000 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Cash (outflow) / inflow generated from operations 25 
         

11,444 
         

(1,668) 
  

                                                           

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  11,444 (1,668) 
    

INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Sale of tangible fixed assets 9 23 - 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 9 (2,673) (5,476) 

Purchase of investment properties 10 (3,225) (5,225) 
  

                                                           

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES   (5,875) (10,701) 
    

FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds of new borrowing 19 23,913 6,392 

Repayment of borrowing 19 (1,154) (946) 
                                          

NET CASH IN FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  22,760 5,446 
    
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS   28,329 (6,923) 
    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  (12,655) (5,732) 
                                          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END  
OF YEAR       15,674          

                
(12,655) 

                                          

Relating to:-    

Bank balances, overdrafts and short term deposits 
included in cash at bank and in hand and current 
assets investments  15,674 (12,655) 

                                          

NCC helds funds on behalf of the Group in 2019/20 and hence the above includes 
the cashflows paid by NCC on behalf of the Group, as set out in note 17, as well as 
cash shown on the face of the Statement of Financial Position.  
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.   
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 Notes 

2021 
 

£’000 

2020 
 

£’000 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Cash inflow  generated from operations 25 
         

16,800 
         

(8,952) 
  

                                                           

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  16,800 (8,952) 

    

INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Sale of fixed assets & investment properties 10 11,503 - 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 9 (2,360) (3,890) 

Purchase of investment properties 10 (641) (1,882) 
  

                                                           

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES   8,502 (5,772) 

    

FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds of new borrowing 19 4,810 5,277 

Repayment of borrowing 19 (1,011) (928) 
                                          

NET CASH IN FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  3,799 4,349 
    
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS   29,101 (10,376) 
    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  (13,828) (3,452) 
                                          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END  
OF YEAR       15,273          

                
(13,828) 

                                          

Relating to:-    

Bank balances and short term deposits included in 
cash at bank and in hand and current assets 
investments  15,273 (13,828) 

                                          

NCC helds funds on behalf of the Company 2019/20 and hence the above includes 
the cashflows paid by NCC on behalf of the Company, as set out in note 17, as well 
as cash shown on the face of the Statement of Financial Position.  
 
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.  
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GENERAL INFORMATION 
Nottingham City Homes Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company domiciled and 
incorporated in England. The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place 
of business is disclosed on page 2. The Company’s principal activities and the nature of the 
Company’s operations are set out in the Director’s report on pages 17 to 22. 
 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 
102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 
102).  
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2006, including the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies 
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, and under the historical cost 
convention. 
 
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, 
except where otherwise indicated. 
 
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of the Group and all of its 
subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the Group controls through its power to govern the financial 
and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits). All financial statements are made 
up to 31 March 2021. As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not 
presented its own statement of comprehensive income as it prepares group accounts and 
the Company’s individual statement of financial position shows the Company’s profit or loss 
for the financial year”. 
 
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group 
companies are eliminated on consolidation.  
 
Included in the Group structure are NCHRP which is limited by guarantee and NCHEL which 
is limited by ordinary share capital and both are controlled by NCH Ltd.  
 
TURNOVER  
Turnover includes property management fees and associated income and is stated net of 
value added tax. Management fees are included within turnover on a time apportioned basis. 
Associated income is included in turnover on the basis of work done.  
Turnover includes rental income due to the Company from tenants in relation to the letting 
of its social housing, market rented and homes for homeless families properties.   
Other operating income consists of funding and income for assisted technology services, 
grant income and income for received for services outside the Company’s core business. 
Operating income and turnover from construction contracts (set out in note 15) are 
recognised on the basis of work done. 
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INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS  
Intangible assets purchased other than in a business combination are recognised when 
future economic benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured 
reliably. 
 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are 
amortised to profit and loss on a straight line basis over their useful lives, as follows:- 

Asset Type 
 

Years 
  

Purchased IT systems and software 3 
 
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
Tangible fixed assets are included in the balance sheet at historical cost less depreciation, 
where appropriate. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets’ 
less the estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
Cost for housing properties includes the cost of acquiring land and building, construction 
costs including internal equipment and fittings, directly attributable development 
administration costs, cost of capital employed during the development period and 
expenditure incurred in respect of improvements and extension of existing properties to the 
extent that it enhances the economic benefit derived from the assets. 
 
The following depreciation rates have been used in 2020/21. The accounting policy for 
vehicles has been changed, with 7 years used in the 2019/20 financial year. 
 
Asset Type Years 
  

Vehicles 9 
  

Boilers 15 
Heating Systems 30 
Kitchens 20 
Bathrooms 20 
Doors 30 
Windows 30 
Re-wiring 40 
Roofs 70 
Structure 80 
  
Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated and going forward the 
useful life of components will be reassessed annually.  The accounting policy for 
depreciation is that charges are applied in the year construction was completed or the year 
properties were purchased. IT and equipment assets less than £5k are not capitalised. 
 
IMPAIRMENT 
The company will undertake impairment reviews where there is an indication that impairment 
may have occurred. Fixed Assets that are considered to be permanently impaired shall be 
written down to their recoverable amounts. 
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
Investment properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value 
whilst a reliable measure of fair value is available without undue cost or effort. Changes in 
fair value are recognised in the profit or loss.  
 
CAPITAL GRANTS 
Grants due from Government organisations or received in advance are included as current 
assets or liabilities.  Grants are amortised to the Consolidated Income Statement over 80 
years and the remaining grant is split between Creditors less than and more than, one year. 
We adopt the accruals method of accounting for capital grants. 
 
OPERATING LEASES  
Payments under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight 
line basis over the period of the lease.  
 
STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS 
Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
of finished goods and work in progress includes overheads appropriate to the stage of 
manufacture. Net realisable value is based upon estimated selling price less further costs 
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and 
slow-moving items where required. 
 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable 
that the contract will be profitable, turnover and costs are recognised over the period of the 
contracts. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract turnover, 
the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 
 
When the outcome of construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract turnover 
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs that are recoverable and the contract costs 
are expensed as incurred. 
 
BORROWING 
All borrowing costs, including costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction 
of freehold properties, where asset costs cannot be funded by the Company’s cash 
reserves, are expensed as incurred. 
 
TAXATION 
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense. 
Current tax assets are recognised when tax paid exceeds tax payable.  
 
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from total 
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other periods. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing difficulties that exist at the 
reporting date. Timing differences between taxable profit and total comprehensive income 
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that arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in different periods 
from their recognition in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax 
liabilities or other future taxable profits. 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, 
unless those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or are 
capitalised as an intangible fixed asset or a tangible fixed asset. 
 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
For defined benefit schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect 
of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the estimated regular cost of providing 
the benefits accrued in the year, adjusted to reflect variations from that cost. The interest 
cost and expected return on assets are included within other finance costs.  Actuarial gains 
and losses arising from new valuations and from updating valuations to the balance sheet 
date are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held separately from the Company in 
separate trustee administered funds. Full actuarial valuations, by a professionally qualified 
actuary, are obtained at least every three years, and updated to reflect current conditions at 
each balance sheet date.  The pension scheme assets are measured at fair value. The 
pension scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit method and discounted at 
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency. 
A pension scheme liability is recognised to the extent that the Company has a legal or 
constructive obligation to settle the liability. 
 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Liquid resources are cash balances held by NCC which the Group can draw against on 
demand. 
 
CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND 
NCC holds funds on behalf of the Group. The Company maintains petty cash balances as 
required.  
 
GOING CONCERN 
The Group does not currently have sufficient reserves to meet the net liabilities on the 
balance sheet, after accounting for defined benefit pension schemes under FRS102. 
However, the ultimate parent Nottingham City Council undertakes to provide continuing 
support and trading and cash flow forecasts have been prepared by the Group.  These 
forecasts show that the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as 
they fall due from the date that these financial statements were approved. 

Accordingly the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and have 
concluded that forecasts show the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its 
obligations as they fall due for a period of not less than 12 months from the date that these 
financial statements were approved. 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Group has chosen to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ 
and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102, in full, to all its financial 
instruments.  
 

Financial instruments and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, and are offset only when the Group 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either 
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and liability simultaneously. 
 

Financial assets 
 

Trade debtors  
 

Trade debtors which are receivable within one year and which do not constitute a financing 
transaction are initially measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any 
amounts settled and any impairment losses. 
 

Financial liabilities and equity  
 

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities and equity instruments according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract 
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. 
 

Trade creditors  
 

Trade creditors payable within one year that do not constitute a financing transaction are 
initially measured at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
being the transaction price less any amounts settled. 
 

Borrowings  
 

Borrowings are initially recognised at the transaction price, including transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest 
payable and other similar charges.  
 

PROVISIONS 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result 
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits   and that 
obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the 
amounts required to settle the obligation. 
 

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 
Company 
In the separate accounts of the company, interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entities are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are assessed for 
impairment at each reporting date. Any impairments losses or reversals of impairment 
losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.  
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1. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable in the circumstances. The Company makes estimates 
and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are limited to those made by the pension fund actuaries, as set out 
in note 22. 

 

 
2. TURNOVER 

 
2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

 

Management fees       22,629        22,374    
Repairs, Maintenance and Capital Fees      38,934      38,406  
Fee adjustment for return to Parent undertaking      (1,492)               -  
Property rental income        5,939        3,975  
Other income        2,257        2,274  

     _________               _________                    

       68,287      67,029  
                                        

Turnover represents the value, net of Value Added Tax of goods services 
provided to third parties.  Other operating income comprises grant from NCC for 
Independent Living and charges to tenants and NCC departments for 
rechargeable works and services.  

 
3. OPERATING EXPENSES  

 
2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

 Staff costs 40,934 40,795 
 Other employee costs 2,822 2,973 
 Supplies and services 17,064 16,161 
 Premises 3,727 2,810 
 Administration 3,097 3,112 
 Other 3,529 5,806 
          __________          __________                   

    71,173    71,657 
                                       
 

4. EMPLOYEES 
 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
      £’000 

           Wages and salaries        29,218        27,291 
           Redundancy        -               53 
           Social security costs          2,700          2,559 
 Pension costs – past service costs (see note 22)                 -          2,149 
 Pension costs – current service cost (see note 22)          9,016          8,743 
         _________           __________                  

        40,934        40,795 
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4. EMPLOYEES - continued 
 

The average monthly number of employees 
(including non-executive Directors) employed by 
the Company during the year was: 

2021 
 

2020 
   

 Housing and Customer Services          386 496 
Property Services 527                  368 
Corporate services 89 145 
                                       

Total          1,001         1,009 
                                       

Property services employee numbers includes all voids employees who were 
transferred from Housing services in 2020/21. 
 

5. INTEREST RECEIVABLE / (PAYABLE)  
 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

 Interest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities  (5,932) (6,583) 
 Interest on defined benefit pensions scheme assets 3,939 4,448 
 Interest receivable - - 
 Short term investment overdraft interest (88) (243) 
 Interest arising on intercompany loans (1,225) (835) 
                                       

 (3,306) (3,213) 
                                       

   
6. LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 

TAXATION 
2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

           Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated 
 after charging:   
 Amortisation of intangible assets (note 8) - - 
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets   
  - owned (note 9) 639 920 
 Loss on disposal of tangible fixed asset (note 9) 2 2 
 Stock (note 12)   
  - amounts expensed to cost of sales 1,528 1,812 
 Operating lease rentals   
  - land and buildings 1,242 284 
  - plant and machinery 19

 
27  

 Fees payable to Bishop Fleming and its associates 
 in respect of both audit and non-audit services are 
 as follows:    

 - Statutory audit of the company 21 25 
     - Statutory audit of NCHRP 6 - 
 - Taxation compliance services 4 6 

  - Other audit services 6 2 
 Other services   

 - Internal audit services (Council) 21 32 
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7. TAXATION 
Analysis of charge in the year:  

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

 UK corporation tax    
 Current tax on income for the year  0 0 
 Adjustments in respect of prior years  0 0 
                                  

 Tax on profit on ordinary activities  0 0 
                                  

 Current tax reconciliation    

 Loss on ordinary activities before  tax  (4,063) (6,053) 
 Current tax at apportioned standard 
 rate for the year – 19% (2019/20 19%)  (772) (1,150) 
 Affected by:     
 - Corporation tax exemption    786 1,167 
                                  

 Total current tax charge  14 17 
                                  

 
 

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
GROUP AND COMPANY 

IT Systems
and 

software
£’000

Total

£’000
Cost  
 At 1st April 2020 489 489
                                         

 At 31st March 2021 489 489
                                         
 Depreciation 
 At 1st April 2020 (489) (489)
 Charge for the period - -
                                                                                                                          

 At 31st March 2021 (489) (489)
                                         
 Net book value 
 

 At 31st March 2020 - -
                                         
 

 At 31st March 2021 - -
                                         

 
 The IT system intangibles relate to the Customer Relations Mgt system. 
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9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
GROUP Assets Under 

Construction
£’000

Freehold 
Land and 
Buildings

£’000

Motor   
Vehicles

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost  
 At 1st April 2020 67 35,379 4,852 40,298
 Additions - 2,543 130 2,673
 Disposals (67) 67 (64) (64)
                                                                                  

 At 31st March 2021 - 37,989 4,918 42,907
                                                                                 
 Depreciation 
 At 1st April 2020 - (1,267) (3,767) (5,034)
 Charge for the period - (482)   (157)  (639)
 Disposals - - 40 40
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 At 31st March 2021 - (1,749) (3,884) (5,633)
                                                                                  
 Net book value 

 At 31st March 2020 67 34,112 1,085 35,264
                                                                                                                        
 

 At 31st March 2021 - 36,240 1,034 37,274
                                                                                 

   
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
COMPANY Assets Under 

Construction
£’000

Freehold 
Land and 
Buildings

£’000

Motor   
Vehicles

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost  
 At 1st April 2020 - 31,503 4,852 36,355
 Additions - 1,565 130 1,695
 Disposals - - (64) (64)
                                                                                  

 At 31st March 2021 - 33,068 4,918 37,986
                                                                                 
 Depreciation 
 At 1st April 2020 - (1,190) (3,767) (4,957)
 Charge for the period - (458) (157)  (615)
 Disposals - - 40 40
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 At 31st March 2021 - (1,648) (3,884) (5,532)
                                                                                 
 Net book value 

 At 31st March 2020 - 30,313 1,085 31,398
                                                                                                                         
 

 At 31st March 2021 - 31,420 1,034 32,454
                                                                                 

The company has pledged land, buildings and vehicles having a net book value of £32.243 
million (2019/20: £27.176m), to secure its loans (note 19) by way of a fixed charge. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

GROUP AND COMPANY 

   
 
 Fair value 

Group
2021
£’000

Group  
2020
£’000

Company 
2021
£’000

Company 
2020
£’000

 At 1st April 2020 20,079 11,891 13,955 11,891
 Additions relating to external acquisitions 125 1,863 125 1,863
 Additions relating to Assets under 
 construction 3,143 3,524 516
 Transfers from Tangible fixed assets - 2,801 - 201

           Sales to NCHEL (11,480)
 Revaluation 1,757 -
                                                                  

 At 31st March 2021 25,104 20,079 3,116 13,955
                                                                  

   
Investment property comprises freehold land and buildings. The fair value of the Group’s 
investment property at 31 March 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of the acquisition and 
refurbishment costs. Investment properties are initially measured at cost and revalued to fair value 
at each reporting date as appropriate. At 31 March 2021, the fair value of investment properties 
reflects the independent valuation carried out at that date.  The Company holds in its investment 
properties, four 999 years leases with the City Council on five buildings acquired at a capital cost 
of £1.734m (2019/20: Three 999 years leases – £1.609m). 

 
11. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS 

 

The Company’s subsidiary undertakings are: 
 

Name of undertaking     Class of shareholding Nature of Business Address 
Nottingham City Homes      Ordinary Two   Property lettings  Loxley House 

Enterprises Limited      1p shares   (market rent)   Station Street 
            Nottingham NG2 3NJ 
Nottingham City Homes      N/A – Limited  Property lettings  As above 
Registered Provider Limited   by guarantee  (social housing) 
    

The financial statements of Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Limited and Nottingham 
City Homes Enterprises Limited are prepared to 31st March 2021.  Nottingham City Homes 
Enterprises Limited has taken the exemption in section 479 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) 
from the requirements of the Act for their accounts to be audited. The guarantee given by the 
Company under section 479 is disclosed in note 26. 
 
 

12. STOCKS 
GROUP AND COMPANY 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Raw materials and consumables 615 646 
Work in progress 438 392 

                                       

  1,053 1,038 
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13. DEBTORS: amounts falling due within one year 
 
 

Group 
 2021 
 £’000 

Group 
2020 
£’000 

Company 
2021 
£’000 

Company 
       2020 
      £’000 

Trade debtors 619 1,196 450  1,029
Amounts owed by parent undertaking (note 30) 45 406 - 460
Amounts owed by subsidiaries (note 30) - - 2,436 7,239
Other taxes and social security - 233 - 243
Prepayments and accrued income 528 390 528 344

                                                           

  1,192 2,225 3,414 9,315
                                                           

14. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENT 
 
 

Group 
 2021 
 £’000 

Group 
2020 
£’000 

 

Company 
2021 
£’000 

 

Company 
2020 
£’000 

 Cash held by NCC -     -      - - 
     

 The balance held by NCC in separate bank accounts to the order of the Group in 
 2019/20, was overdrawn (see Note 17 below).  
 

15. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
GROUP AND COMPANY 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Contracts in progress at the reporting date:   
Gross amounts due from contract customers 209 163 
Gross amounts due to contract customers (360) (180) 

                                       

  (151) (17) 
                                       

 Contract turnover recognised during the year 1,434 163 
 

16. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND 
 

The figures disclosed on the balance sheet represent petty cash balances of 
£1k (2019/20 £5k) and cash held in bank accounts of £15,673k. Cash held in 
bank accounts for the Company total £15,272k. 

 
17. CREDITORS: amounts falling due within 1 year 

Group 
 2021 
 £’000 

Group 
2020 
£’000 

 
Company 

2021 
£’000 

Company           
s     2020 
    £’000 

Trade creditors 2,945 1,117 2,874 1,098
Amounts owed to parent undertaking (note 30) - - 234 -
Amounts owed to subsidiaries (note 30) - - - -
Other taxes and social security 3,104 17 3,089 -
Other creditors 554 448 554 448
Accruals and deferred income 3,997 2,144 3,688 1,914
Grants 15 5 10 -
Overdrawn cash (account held by NCC) - 12,660 - 13,832

                                                           

  10,615 16,391 10,449 17,292
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18. CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more 
than one year 
 
 

Group 
 2021 

   £’000 

Group 
2020 
£’000 

 
Company 

2021 
£’000 

 
Company 
       2020 
      £’000 

Intercompany loans (note 19) 49,187 26,245 26,994 22,932
Grants 858 518 72 26

                                                           

  50,045 26,763 27,066 22,958
 Included in creditors are :                                                           

 Amounts repayable in instalments falling due 
 after more than five years  46,606 24,448 25,259 21,173
                                                           

19. BORROWING 
 
 

 
Group 
 2021 
 £’000 

 
Group 

2020 
£’000 

 
Company 

2021 
£’000 

   
Company 
     2020          

£’000 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year    

      - Intercompany Parent loans 333 516 202 502 
 Creditors: amounts due after more than 1 year    
  - Intercompany Parent loans 49,187 26,245 26,994 22,932 

                                                            

  49,520 26,761 27,196 23,434 
 Included in creditors are :                                                            
 

 Annuity loans from NCC are repayable over 30, 40 & 50 years with interest set at 
 fixed rates between 2.87% and 4.94%. Loan principal and accrued interest on the 
 outstanding balances are repaid every 6 months. Borrowings are secured against 
 the land, buildings & vehicles of the Company (as detailed in notes 9 and 10).      
 
     20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 The Group and Company holds trade debtors, cash and accrued income financial 
 assets and trade creditors, accruals and loan financial liabilities that are all 
 measured at amortised cost. The balances are disclosed in the respective notes. 

 
 
21.  PROVISIONS 

GROUP AND COMPANY 

Opening 
Balance 

 

Utilised 
in the 
Year  

Charge 
for the 

Year 

Released 
as   

Unused 

Closing 
Balance 

 
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

           Employment Tribunals 168 (55) 135 - 248 
           Disrepair Cases - - 80 - 80 

                                                                                

 168 (55) 215 - 328 
                                                                                

 Employment Tribunals 
Potential obligations from pending employment Tribunals. The provision reflects 
an estimate of the transfer of economic benefits which will occur in 2021. 
Disrepair Cases – Potential obligations & costs from claims by tenants. 
 



Nottingham City Homes Limited 
(Company limited by guarantee) 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31st March 2021 
 

             44 

22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GROUP AND COMPANY 
 

As from 1st April 2005, the Company became an admitted member of the Local 
Government Superannuation Scheme, a funded defined benefit scheme. A full 
actuarial valuation was undertaken as at 31st March 2004 and a triennial actuarial 
valuation as at 31st March 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. The principal 
actuarial assumptions used by the actuaries for the purposes of the FRS 102 
calculations are as follows: 
 
     
ASSETS 
 

2021 
% p.a  

2020 
% p.a  

2019 
% p.a  

RPI increases 3.2  2.7  3.4  
CPI increases     2.9  1.9  2.4  
Salary increases 3.9  2.9  3.9  
Pension increases 2.9  1.9  2.4  
Discount rate   2.0  2.4  2.4  
 
The set of demographic assumptions adopted are consistent with those used for 
the most recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31st March 2019. The 
post retirement mortality tables adopted are the S3PA tables with a multiplier of 
110% for males and 105% for females. These base tables are then projected 
using the CMI 2020 Model, allowing for a long term rate of improvement of 1.25% 
p.a., smoothing parameter of 7.5 and an initial addition to improvement of 0.5% 
p.a. and a 2020 weighting of 25%. 

 

 The assumed life expectancy of a male member retiring on 31st March 2021 
 and reaching age 65 in 2041 is 21.6 and 22.9 years respectively (2019/20 – 
 21.8 years for someone retiring on 31st March 2020 and 23.2 years for 
 someone reaching 65 in 2040). The life expectancy of female members retiring 
 on 31st March 2021 and reaching age 65 in 2041 is 24.3 and 25.7 years         
 respectively (2019/20 – 24.4 years for someone retiring on 31st March 2020 and 
 25.8 years for someone reaching 65 in 2040). It has been assumed that:    
     

 Members will exchange pension to get 50% of the maximum available 
cash on retirement; 

 Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which 
will be the pension weighted average tranche retirement age; and 

 The proportion of membership that had taken up the 50:50 option at the 
previous valuation date will remain the same. 

 

The amounts charged or (credited) to profit, or loss, are as follows: 
    

 2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Current service cost 9,016 8,743
Past service costs - 2,149
Net interest on defined liability 1,993 2,135
Administration expenses 73 75

 

______________    _____________ _________    __________________ 

Total 11,082 13,102
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS – continued  
  
 The amounts charged or credited in profit or loss were included in operating 
 expenses – staff costs i.e. within operating profit, with the exception of interest 
 on obligation and the expected return on Scheme assets which were netted off 
 and charged to interest payable. The expected return on assets is based on the 
 discount rate. 
 

 2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Actual return on Scheme assets 36,499 16,877
  
 In 2021/22 it is anticipated that the expected pension scheme employer 
 contributions will be £5.287 million. The major categories of Scheme asset, as 
 a percentage of the total Scheme assets, are as follows: 
     

 2021
  %

2020
  %

Equities 64 64
Gilts 4 3
Other Bonds 7 9
Property  11 13
Cash     5     2
Other 9 9

 

        ______________________ -_________________ 

Total 100 100            

  
 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 
 

      2021
£’000

2020 
£’000 

 Opening defined benefit obligation 254,344 276,784 
Service cost                 9,016                   8,743 
Interest cost                    5,932                   6,583 
Change in financial assumptions  84,080 (31,809) 
 Change in demographic assumptions  (2,723) (4,677) 
 Experience loss on defined benefit obligation (2,971) 1,569 
 Estimated benefits paid (net of transfers in)      (5,578)                 (6,619) 
Past service costs, including curtailments - 2,149 
Contributions by Scheme participants       1,755                   1,624 
Unfunded pension payments  (3) (3) 
      _______            _______            

Closing defined benefit obligation 343,852 254,344 
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS – continued  
            
 Changes in the fair value of Fund assets: 

2021
£’000

2020 
£’000 

Opening fair value of Fund assets 167,156 185,831 
  

 Interest on assets 3,939 4,448 
 Return on assets less interest  32,560 (21,325) 
Other actuarial losses - (722) 
Contributions by employers including unfunded benefits 4,742 3,997 
 Administration expenses (73) (75) 
 Contributions by Fund participants 1,755 1,624 
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of 
transfers in (5,581)

                       
(6,622) 

      _______             _______          

Fair value of assets at end of period 204,498 167,156 
                                

        
 The overall change in the pension scheme deficit is therefore as follows: 
        

  
 

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Deficit brought forward (87,188) (90,953)
Current service cost (9,016) (8,743)
Employer contributions 4,739 3,994
Past service costs, including curtailments - (2,149)
Unfunded pension payments 3 3
Net interest on the defined liability (1,993) (2,135)
Administration Expenses (73) (75)
Re-measurement of the  
net assets (defined liability) (45,826) 12,870

Deficit at end of period  (139,354)                   (87,188)                      
                               

      
 Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows: 

 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

2018 
£’000 

2017 
£’000 

Fair value of Scheme assets 204,498 167,156                        185,831                        168,066                        162,976                        
Present value of the  
defined benefit obligation 

 
(343,852) 

                     
(254,344) 

            
(276,784) 

                     
(266,206) 

                     
(259,081) 

 _____________________ ____________     __              ________   ____ __              __________   __ __              ____________    __              

Net defined benefit liability 
 

(139,354) 
                

(87,188) 
                     

(90,953) 
                     

(98,140) 
                     

(96,105) 
                                                                                

Return on Fund assets  
less interest 32,560 (21,325) 12,594 (197) 25,481 
 

The cumulative actuarial losses recognised in the statement of changes in equity 
at 31 March 2021 are £98.279 million (2020: £52.453m).  
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
 

The Company is limited by guarantee and the liability of members to contribute 
to any deficiency of assets is £1 per member. The members have no rights to 
the income or assets of the Company. 

   
24. RESERVES Group

Profit and
loss 

reserve
£’000

Group 
Total 

 
 

£’000 

Company
Profit and

loss 
reserve

£’000 

Company
Total

£’000 
 At 1st April 2020 (71,899) (71,899) (71,895) (71,895)
 Total comprehensive income  (49,903) (49,903) (49,992) (49,992)
 Revaluation of Investment properties 1,757 1,757 - -
                                                              

 At 31st March 2021 (120,045) (120,045) (121,887) (121,887)
                                                              

25. RECONCILIATION OF LOSS AFTER TAX 
TO NET CASH GENERATED FROM 
OPERATIONS 

 

   
 

    Group 
      2021 
     £’000 

    Group 
      2020 
     £’000 

Company 
2021
£’000

  
Company 

2020
£’000

 Loss after tax          (4,077) (6,070) (4,166) (6,130)

 Adjustments for: 
 

  

 Amortisation of intangible assets 
 

 - - - -

 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 
 

 639 920 585 878

 Defined benefit pension schemes 
 

 4,347 6,970 4,347 6,970

 Increase in provisions  
 

 160 47 160 47

 Loss on disposal of fixed assets 
 

 2 2 2 2

 Interest receivable 
 

 - - - (52)

 Interest payable 
 

 3,306 3,213 2,786 3,085
   ________          ________         _______          ________        

 Operating cash flows before movements 
in working capital 

 
 4,377 5,082 3,714 4,800

 Increase in stock & work in 
 progress        

 
   (15) (339)     (15)  (339)

 Decrease / (Increase) in debtors 
 

            1,033   (1,502) 5,901 (8,550)

 Increase / (Decrease) in creditors 
 

 
             

6,049 (4,909) 7,200 (4,863)
                                                       

 CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATIONS   11,444 (1,668) 16,800 (8,952)
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26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Single status aims to make sure all employees are rewarded equally for work done 
of equal value. As a result of the single status exercise undertaken by the Company, 
some employees have seen an increase or decrease in their pay and the latter 
received some pay protection. All employees have now moved onto their new pay 
scales under the new pay scheme and there are no outstanding appeals or claims for 
compensation or back-dated pay.  
 

A claim against the Company for costs of £492k has been made by a supplier in 
relation to charges levied for the period August and September 2018. These charges 
are refuted and disputed by the Company and the dispute is currently being handled 
by NCH legal and has been referred to both the Police and the Regulator. 

 

 In order for the subsidiary company Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited to 
 take the audit exemption in section 479 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company 
 has guaranteed all outstanding liabilities of both subsidiary companies at 31 March 
 2021 until those liabilities are satisfied in full.  

 
27. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES              

GROUP 

 The Group as a lessee is committed to total future 
minimum lease payments as follows: 

      
 Land and 

buildings 
Plant and 

machinery 

 Amounts due:   
2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

      - Within one year   1,235 838 6 11 
                - between one & five years   341 1,635 - - 

                                             

   1,576 2,473 6 11 
                                               

 
The Company has no Land & Building lease commitments.  
 
  

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  

 2021 
£’000 

 2020 
  £’000 

 
Capital expenditure contracted for but not 
provided for in the financial statements 

 

2,553            2,361             
 
The Group has capital commitments relating to the construction of 21 homes on 
the Meadows Police Station site.  This contract total cost is £3.240m against 
which expenditure of £0.687m have been made or accrued up to 31st March 
2021. The Company has no capital commitments. 
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29. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING  
 

The Company is a subsidiary limited by guarantee and controlled by NCC, a 
local government organisation. Under the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association, NCC appoints one quarter of the board (2 of the 8 Members), with 
the balance of directors being drawn from Council tenants, or leaseholders, and 
members of the wider community. NCC’s Group accounts can be obtained from 
the NCC Information Governance department at the Council’s address on page 
2. 
 

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
The Group has related party transactions with NCC. The majority of the turnover 
and other income is invoiced to NCC (or its agents) and NCC provides a range 
of services to the Company.  During the year, £62.476 million, (2019/20: 
£63.229m) was invoiced to NCC for housing stock management, the repair of 
homes and recharges for services. An amount of £12.856 million (2019/20: 
£13.717m) was charged by NCC for services provided to the Company and 
repayment of loans.   

 
The balance of the turnover in the main represents amounts invoiced to tenants 
for rechargeable works and services. The net amount owed by NCC as at the 
year-end is shown in the analysis of creditors and is further analysed  

     below. All operational building assets used by the Company are owned 
  by NCC and a rent is charged by NCC to the Company in respect of these.     
       

The amount due to the parent undertaking, as shown in the analysis of debtors 
is a net figure. The Company has related party transactions with its subsidiaries, 
NCH RP Ltd and NCH EL. The individual balances are presented below.   
 

 
 

                Group (NCC)  
               Balances with  
                             NCH 

NCH balances 
with  

subsidiaries 

  
2021 

          £’000 
2020 
£000 

2021 
£000 

      2020 
      £000 

Trade and other debtors  11,325 5,248 2,553 7,402 
Intercompany loans (due within 1 year)  - - - 500 
Trade and other creditors  (10,945) (4,319) (117) (663) 
Intercompany loans (due within 1 year)  (333) (516) - - 
Grant (due within 1 year)  (2) (7) - - 
                                                              

    45      406        2,436 7,239 
      

Intercompany loans (due after 1 year)  (49,188) (26,245) - - 
Grant (due after 1 year)  (117) (145) - - 
                                                              

  (49,260) (25,984) 2,436 7,239 
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The directors have elected not to disclose any further details of transactions and 
balances with its subsidiary companies under the exemptions for local government 
controlled groups of companies set out in paragraph 33.11 of FRS 102. 
 

31. REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
 
The total remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Group and Company, 
who are considered to be the key management personnel, was £444k (2019/20 
£639k). These costs reflect only those of the Directors and Company Secretary 
of the Executive Management Team, a set out on page 1. 
 

None of the non-executive directors received any remuneration or taxable 
benefits for their services to the Group and none were members of the NCH 
pension scheme. 
 
The only transactions between the Company and key management personnel 
were salaries and the reimbursement of employee expenses, as disclosed in 
this note. No amounts were owed at the balance sheet date.  


